
 HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION  

AGENDA ITEM EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Agenda Item 

Title/Address: 

Eligibility of Property for Landmark Designation: 

323 Illinois St.  

Significance: Contributing   

Petitioner: Julie Ritter  

 Project Type: Landmark  

             

PUBLIC HEARING 

 
 

MEETING 

3/20/24 
X 

Agenda Item Category: 

 Preliminary Review   Grant  

 Certificate of Appropriateness (COA)  Other Commission Business 

X Landmark/District Designation  Commission Business 

Attached Documents: Additional Requested Documents:  

Application   

Project Description: 

 

A landmark nomination has been submitted for the structure located at 323 Illinois St. 
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Review the landmark nomination and provide a recommendation to set public hearing date. 

 

The hearing date can be set for April 17, 2024. 
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DESCRIPTIVE STATEMENT AND CHONOLOGICAL LIST OF OWNERSHIP 

323 ILLINOIS STREET, ST. CHARLES 

 

HISTORY OF 323 ILLINOIS STREET, ST. CHARLES, ILLINOIS 

The “Eaton Residence,” as it was referred to in local newspapers in at least the years of 

1878-1886, is a brick residence built in 1848.  It has close ties to the well-known Durant family 

in St. Charles.  It was built by Mr. Ithiel Eaton, a brickmaker, who helped to construct other 

historical residences in St. Charles as well.  The residence has had various owners over the many 

years since it was built, including serving as the parsonage at one point for St. Patrick’s Catholic 

Church.  Prior owners have also indicated that the residence was connected to the underground 

railroad during the time of the abolishionist efforts in Illinois.   

 

I.  The Residence Structure 

The residence at 323 Illinois Street is a Greek Revival house with original brick walls 

built in 1848. Typical of Greek Revival style, it has low pitched roof with simple soffits, 

entablature, cornice molding and frieze. If the original layout was the front facing Illinois Street, 

as it is today, then it was built as a side-gabled house, a rare form for the Greek Revival homes 

built in St. Charles in that era. If the original layout was the front facing 4th Street, then it was a 

front gabled house with a side wing, which was a common layout in the Midwest. The original 

rough-hewn pilasters that frame the door on Fourth Street lend credence to this front gabled 

layout, however the lack of a window to the north of the door makes it seem less likely. 

At an unknown time, an addition was made to the residence to add to the 2nd floor on top 

of the single story south wing. This addition was made of matching brick, and swallowed the 

original chimney into the south wall, but the original chimney south face is still visible. 

Sometime prior to 1898, the year of the fist Sanborn Map of Saint Charles, the house had 

a kitchen and a back porch addition, both of wood frame construction. The back porch was 

closed in at an unknown time to become part of the interior of the residence. The kitchen and 

“porch” exterior was covered with EIFS. The footprint of the house has not changed since 1905. 

Lot 1 has remained whole. 

 

II.  The Residence is Built By Ethiel Eaton who Marries Mary Durant 

The residence was built in 1848 by Ithiel Eaton, who was described by Pliny Durant in 

“Reminiscences of Men who have lived in St. Charles,” published in the St. Charles Chronicle 

from 1902 to 1904, as being a “brickmaker by trade, and worked in and around St. Charles in 

that capacity for many years.”  S. W. Durant wrote in Pioneer Notes of St, Charles, published in 

the Chronicle In the Year of 1885-6 that “Ithiel Eaton, a native of Maine, who came to this 

country via the Ohio and Mississippi Rivers at an early period was a ‘striker’ for Bentley for 

several years”. He was described by Pliny Durant in “Men of St. Charles” as quiet but ill-

tempered, who was at odds with the school children at the Western School when they rode their 

sleds down the hill past the house in the winter months. According to Pliny, Ithiel would throw 

ashes on their path to try and spoil the children’s fun.   Ithiel undoubtedly participated in the 

building of the many red brick Greek Revival homes built in St. Charles during his career, 

including the Hunt House, Howard House, the (Bryant) Durant-Peterson House, and the house of 

James Durant which is now the Moss Family funeral home. 

 It is likely that it was during building the Durant houses that he met his future wife, Mary 

Durant, the sister of Bryant & James Durant who were well known figures in St. Charles.  Ithiel 
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and Mary were married in 1848, the year that Ithiel purchased Lots 1 & 2 of Block 51 from 

Minard for $50, and the year that we assume he built the house. The US Census of 1850 has a 

value for the location of $600. Ithiel and Mary married when they were in their 40’s, and did not 

have any children, but Mary’s nephew, Horatio Durant, did live with them for some time before 

settling in Chicago, and Bryant’s daughter, Abba Durant, wrote in her diaries that she and her 

sister visited and stayed with the Eatons often. (Abba Durant Diary 1853-1933).  Mary was 

known as a kind woman who liked to talk.  It is from advertisements for its rental and sale that 

we know the house was known in town as “The Eaton Residence” or “The Eaton House.”   (St. 

Charles Chronicle 1878, 1884, 1886). 

Information has been passed on from owner to owner throughout the years that the house 

was part of the underground railroad during the abolitionist era. The owners have passed on 

information indicating that there is an entrance to a tunnel in the basement that travels under 

either 4th Street or Illinois Street.  The tunnel entrance was sealed and covered up at some point.  

The time of the building of the home, and potentially the additions, along with the family ties to 

known abolitionist James Durant make this a credible claim.   

 

III.  Eatons Sell to Horatio Durant and Subsequent Owners 

 When Ithiel & Mary were elderly and in their 80s, they sold the house to their nephew 

Horatio Durant, who then rented it out for several years. Some of the occupants were the Poole 

Brothers, and a reverend of the Baptist Church that once stood on the corner of 3rd and Illinois 

Street. In 1886 Horatio sold the home to the Catholic Bishop of Chicago, and it was used as the 

parsonage for St. Patrick’s Catholic Church until 1888 when a parsonage was built closer to the 

church (Valley Chronicle 1888).  In 1888 the Catholic Bishop of Chicago sold it to Angelina 

Long, a widow of a farmer, who moved into Saint Charles after her husband’s death and lived a 

socialite lifestyle, announcing her visitors in the local newspaper.   Angelina lived there for many 

years and sold off lot 2 during her time in the house.  Angelina sold the house in 1903 and it was 

then owned by a succession of contributing members of the working class (Reference US 

Census).  Since 1903 the residence has been sold to new owners 9 times and despite the changes  

of ownership, the residence has retained its historical character.  The residence at 323 Illinois 

Street continues to be a showpiece of the architectural and cultural history from St. Charles in the 

1800s. 
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CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF OWNERS AT 323 ILLINOIS STREET 

 

Year Seller      Buyer 

1848  Minard and Millington   Eaton, Ithiel 

1878  Eaton, Ithiel & Mary C (Durant)  Durant, Horatio 

1886  Durant, Horatio & Elvira   Catholic Bishop of Chicago 

1888  Catholic Bishop of Chicago   Long, Angelina 

1903  Long, Angelina. Fellows   Fellows, Rowena & Elmer 

1913  Fellows, Rowena & Elmer   Seputis, Williams 

1922  William, Seputis    Grazanski, Charles 

1924  Grazanski, Charles    Stancikas, Joe 

1983  Stancikas, Anna    Green, Bernice (daughter) 

1994  Green, Bernice    Dispensa, Jennifer 

2000  Dispensa, Jennifer    Hall, Jeremiah 

2002  Hall, Jeremiah     Duplantis, Erika 

2022  Duplantis, Erika    Rutter, Julie & Dave 



 

 



 

 

 


